
 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630 

BY CONTACTING 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT, 503-338-5183. 

 

AGENDA 
HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

October 17, 2017 
5:15 p.m. 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street ● Astoria OR  97103 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. MINUTES 

 
a.        August 15, 2017 Minutes 
b.        Pending receipt of September 19, 2017 Minutes 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
a. New Construction NC17-05 by Brian and Terri Oksen, for new 

construction of a 2,079 square foot single family dwelling and a 338 
square foot garage adjacent to historic structures at 910 Grand Ave in the 
R-3, High Density Residential zone. 
(Continued from September 19, 2017 meeting) 

 
b. New Construction NC17-04 by Zoee Fenton to construct a new single 

family dwelling   adjacent to historic structures at 2609 Irving Ave in the  
R-2 Medium Density Residential zone. 
 
 

5. REPORT OF OFFICERS 
 

6. STAFF UPDATES 
 

7. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT (Non-Agenda Items) 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

1



  

Historic Landmarks Commission 
Minutes 08-15-17 

Page 1 of 3 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION MEETING    
City Council Chambers 
August 15, 2017 
 
CALL TO ORDER – ITEM 1: 
 
A regular meeting of the Astoria Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) was held at the above place at the hour 
of 5:15 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL – ITEM 2:  
 
Commissioners Present:  President LJ Gunderson, Vice President Michelle Dieffenbach, Commissioners 

Paul Caruana, Kevin McHone, and Katie Rathmell.  
 
Commissioners Excused:  Jack Osterberg and Mac Burns 
 
Staff Present:  Planner Nancy Ferber and Community Development Director Kevin Cronin. 

The meeting is recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, 
Inc. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – ITEM 3(a):  
 
President Gunderson asked if there were any changes to the minutes. Commissioner Caruana noted that on 
Page 2, next to last paragraph, second sentence, he believed Mr. Helligso had said the overhang on the west 
elevation would be twelve inches, not eight inches. 
 
Commissioner Caruana moved to approve the minutes of July 18, 2017 as corrected; seconded by Vice 
President Dieffenbach. Ayes: President Gunderson, Vice President Dieffenbach, Commissioners Caruana, 
Rathmell, and McHone. Nays: None.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
President Gunderson explained the procedures governing the conduct of public hearings to the audience and 
advised that the substantive review criteria were listed in the Staff report.  
 
ITEM 4(a):   
 
NC17-02 New Construction NC17-02 by Kathleen A. Karan to construct a 12-foot by 16-foot garage/shed 

and a 6-foot by 8-foot greenhouse adjacent to a historic structure at 1121 11th Street in the R-1 
Low Density Residential Zone. This hearing was continued from July 18, 2017. 

 
President Gunderson asked if anyone objected to the jurisdiction of the HLC to hear this matter at this time. 
There were no objections. President Gunderson asked if any member of the HLC had a conflict of interest, or 
any ex parte contacts to declare.  
 
President Gunderson, Commissioner Caruana, and Commissioner McHone declared that they drove by the 
property.  
 
President Gunderson requested a presentation of the Staff report. 
 
Planner Ferber presented the Staff report and recommended approval with conditions. No correspondence has 
been received. 
 
President Gunderson opened public testimony for the hearing and asked for the Applicant’s presentation. 
 
Kathy Karan, 1121 11th Street, Astoria, (via telephone) said the greenhouse would have 6-foot tall walls with a 
9-foot tall roof height. She hoped to complete the project in phases, starting with the main part of the garage so 

2



  

Historic Landmarks Commission 
Minutes 08-15-17 

Page 2 of 3 

that she could use the garage as a workshop to restore the house. The tool shed and bump out would be added 
later as the need for them arose. She did not have any plans to use the space as an accessory dwelling unit 
(ADU) because currently, her house did not have the minimum square footage required to make her property 
eligible for an ADU. Her original project was just the garage, which had been approved by the State Historic 
Preservation Office (SHPO) for special assessment. However, SHPO had not yet responded to the additions to 
the project. 
 
Commissioner Caruana asked if the window surrounds, corner boards, soffit, and eave details would match the 
house. Ms. Karan said that was her desire, but SHPO recommended simpler design details that distinguished 
the outbuildings from the house as new construction. She had been designing the buildings to match the house 
and look like they had always been there. She was surprised by SHPO’s recommendation, so she did some 
research and found that there are four different schools of thought on the topic, including differentiating new 
construction from historic structures. SHPO stated the decision would be left up to the HLC. She preferred 
matching details, but if she needed to distinguish the new construction, she could add a sign to the house 
stating the year it was built. Also, the garage would have a cement floor, which would identify the garage as a 
new structure because garages had dirt floors 100 years ago. 
 
Commissioner Caruana said he would like the structures to match as closely as possible, mainly the siding, 
fascias, barge, and corner boards. 
 
Commissioner Rathmell confirmed that 8-lite windows would be used on the greenhouse, the 6-lite windows 
would be used on the bump out, and the three, double-hung windows would go on the opposite side of the 
garage. 
 
President Gunderson noted that no members of the public were present to give testimony and called for closing 
remarks from Staff. 
 
Planner Ferber asked if the matching design details should be added as a condition of approval or left up to the 
Applicant to work out with SHPO. 
 
President Gunderson closed the public testimony portion of the hearing and called for Commission discussion 
and deliberation. 
 
Commissioner Caruana said the details shown in the drawings for the new structure need to match the house, 
as submitted. No details need to be added to what was submitted. 
 
Vice President Dieffenbach believed the proposal looked appropriate. The buildings would be located at the 
back of the lot and not visible from the adjacent house. She had no issues with the request, but agreed the 
details should match the house. 
 
Commissioner Rathmell agreed this would be a good project.  
 
Commissioner McHone said he liked that the windows would be recycled. 
 
Planner Ferber recommended the Commission add an eighth condition of approval stating that “overhangs, 
gables, eaves shown in the proposed drawings shall match the existing single-family dwelling.” 
 
Commissioner Caruana said he would be in favor any additional details matching the house, like gable detailing 
or knee brace detailing. Vice President Dieffenbach suggested requiring any additional details to match the 
house. 
 
Commissioner Caruana moved that the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) adopt the Findings and 
Conclusions contained in the Staff report and approve New Construction NC17-02 by Kathleen A. Karan, with 
the following additional condition of approval: 
 Overhangs, gables, eaves, corner boards, and window trim shown in the proposed drawings and any 

additional details shall match the existing single-family dwelling.  
Seconded by Commissioner McHone. Motion passed unanimously. 

3



  

Historic Landmarks Commission 
Minutes 08-15-17 

Page 3 of 3 

 
President Gunderson read the rules of appeal into the record. 
 
REPORTS OF OFFICERS/COMMISSIONERS – ITEM 5:  
 
Commissioner Caruana commented that work was being done on various properties at the east end of Astoria. 
He asked if work other than painting would need to be reviewed by the HLC. He had seen that siding was 
removed from one of the bars directly across from the historic fire station. 
 
Staff confirmed that some projects might not be required to be reviewed by the HLC. Commercial buildings need 
a building permit to install new siding, but not an HLC review if the building is not historic or is not a compatible 
resource. In the case of the bar, the building official had to ask the business to apply for a permit after the siding 
work had already begun. Therefore, the business’s fees were doubled. 
 
The Commission and Staff discussed other renovation projects going on in Astoria. 
 
STATUS REPORTS – ITEM 6: 
 
Planner Ferber updated the Commission on NC16-03 at 12th and Grand, which had been completed. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS – ITEM 7: 

 
Item 7(a):  Refresher on historic window permitting requirements 

 
Planner Ferber reviewed Development Code requirements and criteria for reviewing and approving windows. 
Staff answered questions about enforcement, homeowner requirements versus business requirements, and the 
consequences of failing to apply for a permit. 
 
Planner Ferber noted that there were five permits on the agenda for September so far. She would also provide 
updated on CLG projects. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS – ITEM 8: 
There were none. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:00 pm.  
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Community Development Director 
 

4



5



2 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

II. BACKGROUND 
  
A. Subject Property 
 
 The subject property is 

located on the north side of 
Grand Avenue on the 
Northeast corner of 9th 
Street and Grand Ave. The 
lot is a standard 50’ x 100’ 
(5,000 square foot) lot, and is of sufficient size in the R-3 Zone to 
accommodate the proposed single family dwelling (5,000 square foot 
minimum, 45’ width minimum.) The lot is currently vacant; it is within 
100’ of a known geologic hazard area.  

 
 The corner lot requires a 15’ setback from 9th street, 5’ from the north 

end of the property, 5’ from the east side and 20’ setback from Grand 
Avenue. The applicant provided an updated site plan (see exhibit #1) 
reflecting these required setbacks. Note-the “morning coffee deck” is 
less than 1’ high, and does not count toward lot coverage or as a 
structure within the setback.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site 

#2 653 
9th  

#3 915-917 
Grand

#1 629 
9th

6



3 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

B. Adjacent Neighborhood and Historic Property 
 
 The site is located in the Central neighborhood. The Central Residential 

Area is the City’s oldest neighborhood, and extends generally from 
Second Street to 18th Street and from Bond Street to Niagara Street 
excluding the central business district. The area is home to many of 
Astoria’s Victorian and other historic structures. The Shively-McClure 
National Register Historic District was designated in 2005 with 243 historic 
properties. This neighborhood is built on the north facing flank of the 
Astoria peninsula, and contains a variety of slopes, from gentle on top of 
the hill to very steep in the vicinity of 8th and Irving Streets. Vacant lands 
are generally landslide areas in public ownership or small neighborhood 
parks. This site is in an active landslide area, under private ownership by 
the applicant.  

 
The original zoning was divided between multifamily on the lower areas to 
single-family above Irving Street. Single-family dwellings are the 
predominant land use throughout the area except for Bond Street.  
 
There are three historic properties triggering review of this development. 
There are also homes in the area which are non-contributing structures. 

 
 Review of new construction at this site is triggered by the following 

properties: 
 

1. 629 9th - John T. Allen House 
  Secondary Contributing  
  Shively-McClure Historic District 

  Craftsman 
   
c. 1908 
 
   
Notes from 
the 
Historic 
Inventory: 
 
 “One 
and one-
half story 

building is of wood frame construction in a rectangular plan. 
It has a basement and a concrete foundation. The main roof 
structure is a gable with a gable roofed dormer on the main 
(east) elevation. The roofing material is composition shingle. 
The primary window type is a mix of one-aver-one and 

#2 653 
9th

#1 629 
9th

7



4 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

twelve-aver-one double hung wood sash with a larger, fixed 
pane central window flanked by smaller windows and a full 
width leaded sash window above. The entrance porch is 
recessed, with one shingled tapered corner post. The 
exterior wall finish is wood shingle. The main (east) elevation 
is rectangular, with a one-aver-one primary window in the 
center of the gable wall of the dormer which has multiple 
small panes in the upper sash. The main floor has the typical 
front facade larger window with a fixed wood sash next to the 
recessed porch. Wood steps in a long flight lead from the 
street to the entrance. Originally built as a single family 
residence on a steeply sloping mid-block site, with a dirt road 
extension of 9th Street from the north and a path from Grand 
Ave.” 

 
 

2. 653 9th Street -Rickards-Morton House 
Primary Contributing 

  Shively-McClure Historic District 
Greek Revival (vernacular), c. 1910 
Notes from the Historic Inventory: 
 
This one and one-half story wood frame building is 
rectangular in plan, with a basement and a wood post on a 
masonry pier foundation with a partial wood skirt and a 
partial mortarless cut stone foundation wall. The steep gable 
roof with eave returns is of composition shingle. The primary 
window type is a long vertical two-over-two double hung 
wood sash with simple wood trim. The exterior wall finish 
material is a wood shiplap siding. The main (east) elevation 
has a characteristic projecting polygonal bay of one story, 
with primary windows with ornate decorative trim elements 
and stick style wood panels below the windows. The main 
elevation is organized in an asymmetrical composition with a 
projecting porch to the west side of the main building, with 
wood· steps to the sidewalk. The entrance porch was 
enclosed with a compatible glazing of small paned fixed 
wood sash in about 1930. Built as a single family residence 
on a steeply sloping mid-block site on an extension of 9th 
Street from the north and a gravel path from Grand Avenue 
to the south, the building is in good condition. There is a 
distinctive cut stone retaining wall along the eastern 
boundary of the site. 
 

 
3. 915-917 Grand Ave-Duplex 

8



5 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

Primary Contributing 
Shively-McClure 
Historic District 
Gothic Vernacular 
c. 1910 
 
Notes from the Historic 
Inventory: 
 
This two and one-half 
story building is of wood 
frame construction. It is rectangular in plan, with a basement 
and a concrete foundation. The steep side gable roof has a 
symmetrical central gable dormer. The roofing material is 
composition shingles. There are two equally spaced 
corbelled brick projecting chimneys. The primary window 
type is an unequally divided one-over-one double hung wood 
sash, with the upper sash being the smaller of the two, with 
molded hoods. The exterior wall finish material is a 
channeled drop siding with corner boards. The main (north) 
elevation is symmetrically organized, with a dominant steep 
gable roofed dormer centered in the side gable roof. The 
dormer has two primary windows, with the upper sash 
pitched. The windows flank a decorative diamond shaped 
wood panel. The projecting hip roofed entrance porch has 
been enclosed with a compatible glazing system, and minor 
alterations. Built as a duplex residence originally, the building 
is on a sloping corner site, facing the upper terminus of the 
9th Street foot path. The building is in good condition. 
 

 At a glance: New Construction Proposal 
   
 Height: 2 stories with a height of approximately 17’ 4” to ridge 
 
 Roof: 50 year Barkwood Laminated shingles. Front, 

side, and rear gable roofs, roof pitch 5:12  
  
 Siding: faux wood textured Hardiplank lap siding, with 6” 

exposure; staggered edge paneling near roof 
exposures 

 

9



6 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Windows: Various windows 
are proposed 
ranging from 3 over 
1 to 4 over 1 and 6 
over 1. 

 
The highly visible 
windows facing 
Grand Ave are 
proposed to have 
simulated true 
divided wood clad 
window designs.  
Windows on the 
other facades are a 
proposed vinyl 
material with simulated true divided windows.  

 
  

  

10



7 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

 Doors: Main house access is 
now from south 
(Grand Ave). The 
applicant has 
redesigned the 
entryway to create a 
primary façade on the 
south side of the lot 
with a front entryway 
and pediment. Eaves 
will be covered with 
HardieSoffit for a 
polished look. 

   
Garage: One car garage 

accessed from the 
front elevation (south) 
of house. The 
applicant has 
submitted a garage 
door with a reduced 
size which is now 10’x8’.  

 
 Other: Outdoor brick wall from courtyard down to the rear of the 

house with a handrail, balustrades with natural earth tone 
stones to cover the balustrades in the 
front of the house. Handrails will be 
mounted on the outside stairs and 
consist of pressure treated cedar and 
railings with covered balustrades. 
TREX decking with proposed wire 
railing similar to the photo below, 
fencing around trashcans  

 
  Note fencing is generally not reviewed 

by the HLC, but is included as 
reference. The courtyard wall however, 
is considered a structure and requires HLC review. 

  

11



8 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

III. PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT 
 
 A public notice was mailed to all property owners within 200 feet pursuant to 

Section 9.020 on August 25, 2017. A notice of public hearing was published in 
the Daily Astorian on September 12, 2017. An onsite notice was furnished and 
installed by the applicant within the required 15 days of the hearing. Comments 
received will be made available at the Historic Landmarks Commission meeting. 

 
 As of September 10, 2017, one public comment was received from Mary A. Klatt, 

a neighbor at 791 9th street, whom opposes the construction due to concern of 
the home blocking her view of the river. Her email is included in supplemental 
information.  

 
 The public hearing was left open at the September 19, 2017 meeting. No 

additional comments have been received.  
 
 
IV. APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA AND FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
 A. Development Code Section 6.070(A) states that “No person, corporation, 

or other entity shall construct a new structure adjacent to or across a 
public right-of-way from a Historic Landmark as described in Section 
6.040, without first obtaining a Certificate of Appropriateness from the 
Historic Landmarks Commission.” 

 
  Finding: The structure is proposed to be located adjacent to structure(s) 

designated as historic in the Shively-McClure Historic District. The 
proposed structure shall be reviewed by the Historic Landmarks 
Commission. 

 
 B. Development Code Section 6.070(B.1) states that “In reviewing the 

request, the Historic Landmarks Commission shall consider and weigh the 
following criteria: The design of the proposed structure is compatible with 
the design of adjacent historic structures considering scale, style, height, 
architectural detail and materials.” 

 
  Finding:  

 Style and Scale 
  The proposed structure will be a 2 story single-family dwelling with 

an adjacent garage. The historic structures that trigger the review 
are located to the west, across 9th street down the hill, to the south 
on the south side of Grand Ave. These structures are visible from 
the subject site streetscape and the new structure will be highly 
visible even though it is tucked into the hillside and below the R-3 
zone maximum height requirement. 

 

12



9 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

The adjacent historic structures include a Greek Revival 
single family dwelling, Craftsman single family dwelling and 
Gothic Vernacular styled duplex. Most homes in this area are 
one, 1.5, or two stories and most are single-family dwellings.  
 
The proposed design has elements from other structures in 
the neighborhood including the use of gabled roof, and 
horizontal siding with some shingle gable ends.  

 
  The initial proposed entry way to the house was unusual and 

located off the 9th street side of the building. Pediments are often an 
identifying feature over front doors in Revival and Craftsman style 
homes. A pergola like structure was proposed in place of where a 
front entry door would naturally be. The new design incorporates an 
entryway on the south façade, which is more compatible with the 
adjacent properties along Grand and provides a focal feature other 
than a large garage.  

 
  The new design alleviates some of the initial concern of the garage 

door as a focal point on the south façade of the house. This design 
element is referred to as a “snout house” with a prominent 
protruding garage that takes up most of the frontage. It is not 
compatible with the style and scale of the site. With the inclusion of 
a more craftsman styled garage door with windows and a smaller 
size, the garage is in better scale with the house. 

 
  Adjacent homes, although not historic, have smaller garages that 

are not the focal point as you travel along Grand Avenue. The 
current proposal incorporating the pediment and soffit detailing is 
more compatible with the adjacent historic properties and creates 
an inviting entryway on an appropriate façade.   

 
 Height 

The proposed house is approximately 17’ 4”, which is below the 
maximum of 35’ in the R-3 zone. The adjacent historic structures 
are above 2 stories.  
 

 Architectural details 
The architectural detailing on the new house is minimal compared 
to the adjacent Greek Revival, Gothic Vernacular and Craftsman 
styled homes. With additional detailing, the contemporary design 
could more seamlessly blend in with the neighborhood and 
adjacent historic properties.  
 

13



10 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

To add a more finished look and add architectural detailing 
compatible with the adjacent Gothic Vernacular home, the applicant 
has submitted updated plans which include covered eaves. 
 
Additional details include an outdoor brick wall from the courtyard 
extended down to the rear of the house with a handrail and 
balustrades with natural earth tone stones to cover the balustrades 
in the front of the house. TREX decking with proposed wire railing 
system, fencing around trashcans (note fencing is not reviewed by 
the HLC, but included as reference).  
 
While fencing is not generally reviewed by HLC, the courtyard wall, 
falls under the purview for HLC review as it is a highly visible 
design element and is considered a structure. Additional design 
details for the wall shall be clarified. The applicant may build a 
fence 4’ tall at 
the property line 
or in the 
setback. 
However a 6’ 
wall is 
considered a 
structure, and 
structures are 
not allowed in 
setbacks. The 
wall would need 
to be located 
beyond 
minimum side 
yard setback. 
Fence/wall 
requirements 
are shown in the 
diagram to the 
right.  

 
 

 

14



11 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

 Materials  
There were discrepancies in some of the initial designs for lites in 
the windows. Initial renderings have been updated by the applicant 
and are included in the applicant’s supplemental material 
submission. In the past, the HLC has approved external applied 
grids or no grids, but has not approved internal grids alone, as they 
create a false appearance without the typical shadow lines created 
by a true divided lite. These windows create one reflection without 
the breakup typical of true divided lites. If the applicant choses 
divided windows, the applicant shall incorporate windows with 
simulated true divided, or true divided lites to maintain the historic 
character of the area.  
 
Specifications for materials are included in the supplemental 
information. A mix of vinyl and fiberglass clad windows are 
proposed. 

 
Roof pitch for the house is 5:12. The slope is appropriate for the 
scale of the structure. Steep rooflines are typical of historic homes 
as contemporary homes generally have shallow, low pitch roofs. 
However, the applicant noted their intent to maintain a view for their 

15



12 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

neighbors and chose a less steeply sloped pitch to allow for the 
views.  
 
The garage door creates a solid flat plane that is highly visible as 

part of the front façade at the site. As mentioned above, the “snout 
house” design is unusual in a residential area with a variety of 
housing styles and diverse footprints. The garage becomes the 
focal point of the site rather than a covered porch or entryway with 
pediments which is more common in the adjacent homes triggering 
review. The new entryway design for a smaller garage door which 
incorporates transom lites and adds additional detailing is more 
compatible for the site.  
 

16



13 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

Incorporating a front door off Grand Avenue is imperative to siting a 
structure that is compatible with the design of adjacent historic 
structures. When the applicant initially proposed an accessory 
dwelling unit in the lower unit, a side door would be appropriate to 
avoid the look of a duplex on a lot that is too small to house a 
duplex. However, the applicants confirmed they will remove the 
second kitchen unit. The current proposal reflects an appropriate 
design for a single family dwelling.  

 
With the conditions noted, and additional information submitted by 
the applicant, the proposed structure is compatible in scale, style, 
height and architectural detail with the existing historic homes.  

 

 C. Development Code Section 6.070 (B.2) states that “In reviewing the 
request, the Historic Landmarks Commission shall consider and weigh the 
following criteria: The location and orientation of the new structure on the 
site is consistent with the typical location and orientation of adjacent 
structures considering setbacks, distances between structures, location of 
entrances and similar siting considerations.” 

 
 Finding:  

The footprint of the house and garage are fairly simple and rectangular. 
The house is approximately 1,373 square foot, the garage is an additional 
333 square feet which is less than the maximum 50% lot coverage for the 
site. 
 
The proposed location is within the required setbacks from the zone. A 
corner lot in the R-3 zone is required to have setbacks of 15’ on the street 
side, 20’ in the front, 5’ on the rear, and 5’ on the side. The proposed 
location of the footprint of the house is in conformance with the required 
setbacks, and will continue the plane of existing houses located on the 
north side of Grand Avenue. 
 

17



14 
 

T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri Oksen 
910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx  

As part of construction, the applicant shall improve the sidewalk across 
their frontage. The applicant shall coordinate with Public Works regarding 
the possibility of utility easement for an existing waterline on the property. 
In addition, construction work or repair work to the driveway and sidewalk 
may trigger permits required by Public Works. The applicant shall submit 
all necessary permits for work in the Right of Way, and/or grading and 
erosion control for the site. 
 
The proposed location of the house is consistent with the location of other 
similar structures.  

  
D. Comprehensive Plan sections .250 states Historic Preservation Goals #7 

“Provide appropriate visible recognition of the historical significance of 
sites, structures, areas (or) elements within the City.”  

 
Comprehensive Plan sections .218 states housing goals including the 
following: #1.Provide opportunities for development of a wide variety of 
housing types and price ranges within the Urban Growth Boundary.  
# 6.Protect neighborhoods from incompatible uses, including large scale 
commercial, industrial, and public uses or activities and #8.Protect 
Astoria's historic neighborhoods as significant assets of the City through 
the Historic Preservation Ordinance, and other City actions that protect 
individual structures and neighborhoods. Wherever possible, renovate 
existing structures in lieu of demolition or new construction.

 
Finding:  
In addition to the Historic Preservation Goals in the Comprehensive Plan 
which guide historic preservation efforts city wide, the Comprehensive Plan 
addresses general housing goals. The overarching goals applicable to this 
proposal settle around preservation projects which recognize the historical 
significance of areas, and protect neighborhoods and specifically Astoria’s 
historic neighborhoods from incompatible uses. 
 
The new proposal meets the guidelines established in the Comprehensive 
Plan. The pervious proposal with an ADU did not meet zoning criteria, and was 
an incompatible use of the site. 
 

 
V. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The request in balance meets criteria. Significant design changes were submitted 
to address the design of the entryway, removing the proposed ADU, and adding 
some detailing. 

 
Staff recommends approval with the following conditions: 

 

18



15 
 

15 
T:\General CommDev\HLC\Permits\New Construction\NC 2017\NC 17-05 910 Grand Brian Osken\NC17-05 Brian and Terri 
Oksen 910 Grand SFD_Final_Amended_for_Continuance.docx 

1. Windows shall be simulated true divided, or true divided.  
 

2. Additional details on the location and materials for the proposed courtyard wall 
shall be submitted to the Community Development Department for review. In the 
street side setback of a corner lot, measured from the front property line, fences 
cannot be higher than 4 feet. If the wall is over 6’ and located in the setback, it is 
considered a structure and will require a variance, and review by HLC. If the wall is 
reduced to a fence design 4’ in height, it may be located at the property line or 
within the setback and would not require review by HLC.  
 

3. Construction work or repair work to the driveway and sidewalk may trigger permits 
required by Public Works. As part of construction, the applicant shall improve the 
sidewalk across their frontage. The applicant shall coordinate with Public Works 
regarding the possibility of utility easement for an existing waterline on the 
property. 
 

4. The applicant shall submit all necessary permits for work in the Right of Way, 
and/or grading and erosion control for the site.  
 

5. Any visible wood shall be free of pressure treatment incision marks. 
 

6. Significant changes or modifications to the proposed plans as described in this 
Staff Report shall be reviewed and approved by the Historic Landmarks 
Commission. 

 
7. The applicant shall confirm the style of handrails on the outside stairs comply with 

building code requirements for handrail safety. 
 

 
The applicant should be aware of the following requirements: The applicant shall obtain all 

necessary City and building permits prior to the start of construction. 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111




